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PN10160  
JUSTICE ROSS:  May I have the appearances in Melbourne, please. 

PN10161  
MS K BURKE:  Ms Burke, for United Voice, your Honour. 

PN10162  
MR P WHEELAHAN:  If your Honour pleases, Wheelahan, for the NRA, NGA 
and ARA. 

PN10163  
MS A FORSYTH:  Your Honour, Ms Forsyth, for the SDA. 

PN10164  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Thank you.  Anybody else? 

PN10165  
MS G STARR:  Your Honour, Starr, initial G, for the ACTU. 

PN10166  
MR C BREHAS:  Your Honour, Costa Brehas, for the NRA. 

PN10167  
MS S BURNLEY:  Your Honour, Burnley, initial S, for the SDA. 

PN10168  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Anybody else?  No?  In Sydney? 

PN10169  
MR M SECK:  Seck, initial M, for the Pharmacy Guild of Australia, with MS S 
WELLARD. 

PN10170  
MR L IZZO:  Izzo, initial L, on behalf of the New South Wales Business 
Chamber and ABI. 

PN10171  
MR A GOTTING:  Gotting, initial A, for the Australian Industry Group. 

PN10172  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Thank you.  Anyone else? 

PN10173  
MR G PARKES:  Yes, your Honour.  Parkes, initial G, on behalf of Restaurant 
and Catering Industrial. 

PN10174  
MS S WELLARD:  Wellard, initial S, together with MR M SECK, for the 
Pharmacy Guild, but also for the AHA. 

PN10175  



JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  If we can turn to the matters to be dealt with at the 
mention.  The first is the scheduling of the remaining expert evidence.  Can I deal 
with one matter in relation to that first.  The SDA has requested that Dr Pratley's 
evidence be given in the period from 4 to 6 November and Ai Group has no 
objection to that course.  Does anyone else want to say anything about that?  No?  
all right.  Dr Pratley will be moved from the current program that was circulated.  
I note, as Ai Group observes, he was in two spots, but he will be taken out of both. 

PN10176  
Can I deal then generally with the scheduling of the remaining expert evidence.  
You will recall the discussion on the last occasion this matter was before the 
Commission about other dates being available.  Can the parties advise as to where 
they are up to in relation to this matter?  Who wants to go first? 

PN10177  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, the SDA was waiting for some further 
confirmation regarding the length of cross-examination from the employers. 

PN10178  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10179  
MS BURNLEY:  We haven't received that yet, so what in the meantime I did try 
and do was to assess availability for either the 4th, 5th and 6th, and also for 14 to 
18 December.  Your Honour seemed to think that would be the next least difficult 
time to slot people into, for counsels' availability, so what the SDA has 
undertaken is that we have confirmed that three of our experts are available. 

PN10180  
Possibly at the moment I'm tending towards 15 December, just because one is 
away the week prior; to move three of them, which would be Charlesworth, 
McDonald and O'Brien.  Depending on what cross-examination lengths come in 
for the other experts, they may or may not fit into 5 and 6 November. 

PN10181  
JUSTICE ROSS:  How many do you have? 

PN10182  
MS BURNLEY:  I think we have 10, your Honour.  It depends.  We're also 
sharing with United Voice. 

PN10183  
JUSTICE ROSS:  So Charlesworth, McDonald and O'Brien are not available on 
the 4th, 5th and 6th.  Is that what you're saying? 

PN10184  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour. 

PN10185  
JUSTICE ROSS:  But they're available in the week commencing the 14th? 

PN10186  



MS BURNLEY:  Yes. 

PN10187  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right. 

PN10188  
MS BURNLEY:  The other mention I will make is that experts Muurlink and 
Oliver are available only on 4 November, so we'd propose that they be listed for 
hearing at that time. 

PN10189  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Ms Burke, what can you tell me about United Voice's 
witnesses, experts and their availability? 

PN10190  
MS BURKE:  Just what Ms Burnley has advised you, your Honour, that Dr 
Muurlink and Dr Oliver are available on 4 November.  There are difficulties with 
both of them on the 5th and for that reason we would prefer that they not give 
evidence on the 6th, because we would like to speak to them the day before they 
give evidence. 

PN10191  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That's okay.  What about the other nine? 

PN10192  
MS BURKE:  The other nine are in the camp of the SDA.  Muurlink and Oliver 
are the only witnesses that United Voice are calling or have principle carriage for 
calling those witnesses. 

PN10193  
JUSTICE ROSS:  So I'm assuming the other nine are available on 4, 5 and 6 
November. 

PN10194  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour.  They are at this stage. 

PN10195  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The retailers.  Where are you up to on the cross-examination 
estimates? 

PN10196  
MR WHEELAHAN:  We have provided the estimates to the parties in Sydney, 
who are collating them. 

PN10197  
MR IZZO:  Your Honour, it's Mr Izzo here.  Yesterday evening we kind of 
managed to total the cross-examination estimates, but, just given the timing, we 
haven't yet had the opportunity to file that in the Commission or serve it on the 
SDA.  I do have the times though in front of me.  There are perhaps two options.  
One, I can address them orally.  Otherwise, we can try and make a document 
available within the next five minutes or so, but I do have the comprehensive 
totals before me now. 



PN10198  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Look, I think probably the most sensible course is - 
we've heard about availability.  If you can file the document you've got and then 
I'll circulate a draft schedule for the remaining expert evidence.  Everyone can 
have that in front of them and we'll deal with it at a further mention that we can 
have during the course of the proceedings in the retail case. 

PN10199  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Your Honour, can I just ask - my learned friend, I thought 
that she said in the period 14 to 18 December, there were three expert witnesses - - 
- 

PN10200  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Charlesworth, McDonald and O'Brien. 

PN10201  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Correct - and they might start on the 15th and not the 14th. 

PN10202  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10203  
MR WHEELAHAN:  That, for my part, would suit me. 

PN10204  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right. 

PN10205  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Thank you. 

PN10206  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The other thing we have is Muurlink and Oliver only being 
available on 4 November.  The other experts, depending on the estimates on 
cross-examination, could be dealt with on the 4th, 5th or 6th.  Are you content 
with that court, Mr Izzo? 

PN10207  
MR IZZO:  Yes, I am, your Honour.  I think based on the estimates I've got, we 
should be able to deal with Muurlink and Oliver in one day hopefully. 

PN10208  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay.  Anyway, I'll wait to see the estimates and then see 
where we go, and circulate it.  Is there any difficulty if we have a further mention 
of the scheduling of the expert evidence at 9 o'clock on Monday, 12 October, so 
prior to the commencement of the first tranche of the retail evidence. 

PN10209  
MS BURKE:  It's just that Mr Dowling and I are both unavailable and involved in 
other matters for more or less the whole retail hearing, but we'll file anything we 
need to in writing - - - 

PN10210  



JUSTICE ROSS:  Also you can be represented.  Just get someone from United 
Voice along.  It's really only a scheduling issue. 

PN10211  
MS BURKE:  Yes. 

PN10212  
JUSTICE ROSS:  It doesn't require legal argument.  Okay, anything further on 
that? 

PN10213  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, just one issue and it was my error at some point.  
I mixed up the availability of Professor Altman and Professor Markey regarding 
who is available on the 27th and who was available on the 28th and 29th.  It only 
came to my attention yesterday, so we would propose that Professor Altman is 
available on Tuesday, the 27th - - - 

PN10214  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That's all right.  We'll deal with the retail schedule in a moment. 

PN10215  
MS BURNLEY:  These are experts, your Honour. 

PN10216  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I know that, but they're the remaining experts.  I'm talking 
about the ones that aren't already scheduled.  Can we move to the process for 
resolving the notices to produce.  What had been proposed was that that matter be 
listed for hearing at 12.15.  Ai Group had asked what was going to be dealt with at 
that hearing.  What outstanding objections are there?  Where have the notices to 
be produced been issued and objections been filed?  Are there any remaining? 

PN10217  
MS BURKE:  In respect of the notices to produce that were filed to United Voice 
witnesses, the two sets of Borland and Quiggin notices, orders were made and 
documents have been provided.  We can draw a line through those ones. 

PN10218  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay.  Quiggin has been dealt with? 

PN10219  
MS BURKE:  Quiggin has been dealt with and Borland has been dealt with. 

PN10220  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Right. 

PN10221  
MS BURKE:  There were also orders made on 22 September directed to Dr 
Muurlink and Dr Oliver.  United Voice has requested more time to review those 
and file any objections, if necessary, and/or respond to the notices.  The request 
for more time simply arises because of tomorrow's hearing. 

PN10222  



JUSTICE ROSS:  And I think you've asked that those matters, both the notices to 
produce and the objections to the evidence of Doctors Oliver and Muurlink, be 
dealt with in the last week. 

PN10223  
MS BURKE:  Of the retail hearing, when - - - 

PN10224  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, I think they can be dealt with at 12 noon on Thursday 29 
October. 

PN10225  
MS BURKE:  Thank you, your Honour. 

PN10226  
JUSTICE ROSS:  So any objection to that course, that is, that the objections to the 
notices to produce for Doctors Muurlink and Oliver and any objections to their 
evidence will be dealt with at 12 noon on Thursday 29 October?  No?  All right. 

PN10227  
MS BURKE:  And can I just mention one more matter in relation to the notices to 
produce?  There were two sets of orders made in respect of Ballen and Quiggan, 
as in from two separate employer representatives and we would just ask that, if 
any other employer group is going to file or seek orders against – well, not 
against, but in respect of Muurlink and Oliver, that they be done quickly, so we 
only need to go through the process of objections, if necessary, as well as 
document collection and production for those witnesses once. 

PN10228  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Okay, have any other notices to produce been issued 
in respect of any of the other expert witnesses? 

PN10229  
MS FORSYTH:  Yes, they have, your Honour. 

PN10230  
JUSTICE ROSS:  And do you have any objections to them? 

PN10231  
MS FORSYTH:  We do, and we intend to file objections with respect to that 
notice.  That was issued by FCB on behalf of the ARA and Co. 

PN10232  
JUSTICE ROSS:  When were you planning on filing the objections? 

PN10233  
MS FORSYTH:  Well, your Honour, we anticipate, given the direction that there 
be a hearing with respect to objections to notices to produce, that they would need 
to be filed by, at the latest, mid next week, with a response from the relevant 
employer parties by the end of next week. 

PN10234  



JUSTICE ROSS:  Well, if you can file by 4 pm on Monday and the employers can 
respond by 4 pm on Thursday. 

PN10235  
MS FORSYTH:  Thank you, your Honour. 

PN10236  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right?  And then we can deal with those at the 12.15 
hearing.  So the 12.15 hearing, we deal with all objections to notices to produce in 
respect to the expert witnesses, save for those in respect of Doctors Oliver and 
Muurlink which will be dealt with on Thursday 29 October.  Everybody clear 
about that?  Anyone have any questions about that? 

PN10237  
MS BURKE:  Just one question - - - 

PN10238  
MR IZZO:  Your Honour, Mr Izzo here.  Can I just, just to clarify one matter?  
Whilst we don't object to dealing with the objections to the notices to produce for 
Muurlink and Oliver on the 29th, we just request, and we might put this in writing 
to the United Voice, that the union parties are in a position to produce, shortly 
thereafter if necessary, because Muurlink and Oliver will be due to give evidence 
on the 4th and so we will have very little time between the objections being heard 
and the actual cross-examination. 

PN10239  
And whilst there's no objection to having the matter heard on the 29th, if the union 
parties take two or three or four days to then produce documents after the 
objections, we'll be in quite an undesirable position. 

PN10240  
JUSTICE ROSS:  You should have those documents ready to produce at that 
hearing, okay? 

PN10241  
MS BURKE:  And might also be helpful to get a timetable for United Voice to 
file our objections, if any? 

PN10242  
JUSTICE ROSS:  So you don't know whether you'll have any objections yet? 

PN10243  
MS BURKE:  No.  Well, not entirely. 

PN10244  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Okay.  Well, if you can file your objections by 4 pm 
Friday 16 October.  Mr Izzo, if you can file your reply by 4 pm Friday the 23rd 
and then we'll hear the matter at 12 noon on Thursday the 29th, okay? 

PN10245  
MS BURKE:  Thank you, your Honour. 



PN10246  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Commissioner, just on the notices to produce, there's quite a 
number and - - - 

PN10247  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I'm only dealing with the experts at the moment.  Is that what 
you're talking about? 

PN10248  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Yes, experts. 

PN10249  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10250  
MR WHEELAHAN:  And there's been correspondence between the parties and 
the union response to some of the notices is that they actually agree to provide 
certain documents but have not yet and it would helpful if that could be expedited. 

PN10251  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Well, isn't there a return date on the notice?  I didn't issue the 
orders. 

PN10252  
MR WHEELAHAN:  I think it's passed, hasn't it?  Yes, it's passed. 

PN10253  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Well, why hasn't it been produced?  Which union hasn't 
provided it? 

PN10254  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Yesterday. 

PN10255  
MS FORSYTH:  Your Honour, we haven't and there is a reason for that.  We are 
in the process of complying with the order, as it pertains to the SDA, but as the 
order is currently cast, it is only directed at the SDA and not the relevant experts.  
This was, on 24 September, brought to the attention of our opponents of the issuer 
of the notice to produce, namely the FCB and - - - 

PN10256  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Well, I'll issue another order today, directed at the witness. 

PN10257  
MS FORSYTH:  And that has been what has been anticipated by the SDA and we 
are proceeding to deal with our experts on the assumption that that, in fact, would 
be the course that the Commission would take. 

PN10258  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right, well is there any reason you can't produce it by 4 pm 
next Tuesday, other than the bit you object to?  You've presumably been in touch 
with them.  You've had the notice for a while.  The return date's passed. 



PN10259  
MS FORSYTH:  I don't think there'll be any difficulty in that regard, your 
Honour. 

PN10260  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Okay, which witnesses were they? 

PN10261  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Dr O'Brien, Ms Watson, Kershner, Bartley. 

PN10262  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Barkley? 

PN10263  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Yes.  Oldman, Charlesworth and McDonald, Peets. 

PN10264  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Do you have copies of the notices to produce, the orders? 

PN10265  
MR WHEELAHAN:  I haven't tabled - - - 

PN10266  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Does your instructor? 

PN10267  
MR WHEELAHAN:  I'll just find out. 

PN10268  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Perhaps if I can ask your instructor to provide them to my 
associate after the hearing, just so that I can make sure the orders are done 
properly. 

PN10269  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Yes, I will do that. 

PN10270  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think AI Group had raised the issue of how do we deal with 
the notices to produce that may be forthcoming in respect of the retail lay 
witnesses to be called by the union?  Do you want to say anything about that, Mr 
Gotting? 

PN10271  
MR GOTTING:  It just seems to us that it will be potentially necessary for the 
Commission to set a timetable to deal with any objections that are raised by the 
unions to a notice to produce issued by AI Group, directed to one of the retail lay 
witnesses.  As your Honour would appreciate, we have not yet received the 
evidence of the retail lay witnesses. 

PN10272  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, all right. 



PN10273  
MR GOTTING:  So I'm not in a position to say whether we will be issuing or we 
will not be issuing notices to produce. 

PN10274  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay. 

PN10275  
MR GOTTING:  But it seems, given - - - 

PN10276  
JUSTICE ROSS:  No, no, that's fine.  Okay. 

PN10277  
MR GOTTING:  - - - past history, that it's likely to be the subject of objection. 

PN10278  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes.  Well, is that past history?  In relation to the United Voice 
lay witnesses, there were notices to produce issued.  Were there any objections to 
those? 

PN10279  
MS BURKE:  No. 

PN10280  
JUSTICE ROSS:  No. 

PN10281  
MS BURKE:  There was a small number of notices and they were just for tax 
returns, so - - - 

PN10282  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, yes.  Well - - - 

PN10283  
MR GOTTING:  Maybe I've made an assumption that there seemed, in the 
hospitality stage at least, to have been some objections. 

PN10284  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, all right. 

PN10285  
MR GOTTING:  And that's what I was focussing my attention on. 

PN10286  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10287  
MR GOTTING:  But if I made an incorrect assumption, so be it. 

PN10288  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 



PN10289  
MS BURKE:  The objections went the other way, as I understand it.  The United 
Voice sought substantial production - - - 

PN10290  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That's right. 

PN10291  
MS BURKE:  - - - and was partly successful. 

PN10292  
JUSTICE ROSS:  And look, that's understandable, given the nature of the 
evidence filed by both sets of lay witnesses.   If any notices to produce are sought 
in relation to the SDA lay witnesses, the statements are due on the 5th, is that's 
right? 

PN10293  
MS BURKE:  Yes, your Honour. 

PN10294  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Then the notices to produce should be filed by 4 pm on 
Wednesday 7 October. 

PN10295  
MR GOTTING:  Your Honour, could I just ask for a slight extension of that 
time?  The reason for the extension is that, although the material is likely to be 
filed by 4 pm on 5 October, it's practically not likely to get to us until the next day 
and we just need a bit of time to review the material and determine - - - 

PN10296  
JUSTICE ROSS:  How many witnesses are we talking about? 

PN10297  
MR GOTTING:  - - - those matters that - - - 

PN10298  
JUSTICE ROSS:  10 or less, something like that? 

PN10299  
MS FORSYTH:  10 or less. 

PN10300  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right, it can be 4 pm on Thursday the 8th.  I mean, Mr 
Gotting, you're the party who's raising that we might not have time to deal with 
any objections, so the sooner you get in the notices, the sooner we'll know 
whether there are any objections. 

PN10301  
Perhaps if the SDA can advise, at the commencement of the proceedings on 
Monday the 12th at 9.30, if you have any objections to the notices to produce and 
then we'll see what we do with those.  Okay?  But beyond that, I don't think we 



should program it, because on the experience with United Voice's witnesses, it's 
unlikely to be an issue 

PN10302  
MS FORSYTH:  Thank you, your Honour.  Just while we are on the issue of the 
lay evidence, the other matter that isn't timetabled at present, is the issue of 
objections to lay evidence.  Your Honour - - - 

PN10303  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Well, we'll take – yes, that's true.  Have you filed objections? 

PN10304  
MS FORSYTH:  No, we haven't.  And it may be that next week is an appropriate 
time in which a time table can be set for that. 

PN10305  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10306  
MS FORSYTH:  We had thought of an hour being set aside at the beginning of 
the hearing on the 12th, although I do note that we now have the mention to do 
with the rescheduling of or the scheduling of the experts. 

PN10307  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think we will deal with the first set of witnesses as we go, and 
objections can be resolved at the commencement of their evidence; that's the first 
four witnesses, it just depends on the volume.  We will either deal with the 
balance of them following a hearing at 12.15 or we will hear them after the last 
witness scheduled on the 12th, but at this stage - look, I would expect you should 
look closely at the objections and how they were dealt with in United Voice. 

PN10308  
What I don't want to do is to have to traverse the same ground and reach the same 
decisions, have to listen to the same argument.  You know where most of them are 
going, and the experience in relation to the hospitality evidence was that they 
were overwhelmingly resolved by agreement between the parties, and so we 
would expect that to be the case here, but if we have to deal with them, we will 
deal with them. 

PN10309  
MS FORSYTH:  Thank you, your Honour.  I will take that on notice. 

PN10310  
JUSTICE ROSS:  In terms of the program for filing the objections - this is to the 
employer lay evidence - if you can file your objections by 4 pm on Tuesday, 6 
October; the employers can file their response by 4 pm on Thursday, 8 October.  
And as I say, we will deal with the first few witnesses as we commence their 
evidence, if there are any objections in relation to them.  You can mention the 
matter at the commencement at 9.30. 

PN10311  



What I would expect is that there would be discussions between the parties to 
resolve as many of the objections as possible, and we will get a report on those 
discussions at the commencement at 9.30. 

PN10312  
MS FORSYTH:  Thank you, your Honour.  I think just subject to noting that I 
think Thursday falls on 7 October - - - 

PN10313  
JUSTICE ROSS:  7th.  Thank you. 

PN10314  
MS FORSYTH:  And I understand that would - - - 

PN10315  
JUSTICE ROSS:  And Tuesday would be the 5th? 

PN10316  
MS FORSYTH:  The 5th.  Thank you, your Honour. 

PN10317  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Is there anything else in relation to the first two items on the 
agenda?  Can I get an update on the discussions about the objections to the 
evidence of Ms Pezzullo. 

PN10318  
MS WELLARD:  Your Honour, it's Ms Wellard here.  Just - if I can - sorry, it's 
the first opportunity I've had to get to my feet - just return to the issue of the 
notices to produce on the experts.  We served two notices or filed draft orders 
with respect to Dr Oliver and Professor Quiggin.  Our draft notices were directed 
directly to the experts, but the orders made were on United Voice, so we fall into 
that same camp and request that they be re-issued to the experts directly. 

PN10319  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes.  Can you email my associates with a copy of the orders 
that have been issued to date? 

PN10320  
MS WELLARD:  Yes, your Honour, I can.  I can indicate that United Voice has 
produced some documents with respect to Professor Quiggin.  I had assumed that 
those documents were produced essentially on behalf of Professor Quiggin and 
were documents that Quiggin had, as opposed to the union having in their 
possession, but I may be wrong on that, and perhaps United Voice can clarify. 

PN10321  
MS BURKE:  The documents that were produced on behalf of Professor Quiggin 
were produced partly by Professor Quiggin, where they were for his working 
papers, for example.  So to the extent there's any concern there in respect of 
Professor Quiggin specifically, everything that is producible has been produced, 
regardless of whether the order was directed to United Voice or Professor 
Quiggin.  There were two orders in respect of Quiggin, and I think one was 



directed to Professor Quiggin himself, the other to United Voice.  Between the 
two of them - - - 

PN10322  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Is this in relation to the Pharmacy Guild? 

PN10323  
MS BURKE:  The Pharmacy Guild or the AHA issued one to United Voice for 
Professor Quiggin; AiG issued one to Professor Quiggin. 

PN10324  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Were they in the same terms? 

PN10325  
MS BURKE:  More or less.  But anything that was producible to either of those 
orders has been produced.  I don't - - - 

PN10326  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Mr Wellard, does that answer your question:   anything that can 
be produced, has been? 

PN10327  
MS WELLARD:  If that's - I'm happy to go back and have another look at it and 
have some quick discussions with United Voice this afternoon if there are any 
issues, your Honour.  As I said, our draft order was directed at Professor Quiggin, 
but the order actually made was directed at United Voice. 

PN10328  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think you've heard from Ms Burke that they've been in touch 
with Professor Quiggin and they've produced not only what they've got, but what 
he has, and given everything that both parties have in response to the notices. 

PN10329  
MS WELLARD:  Yes, your Honour. 

PN10330  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Where are we up to with Ms Pezzullo's evidence? 

PN10331  
MS FORSYTH:  Your Honour, the parties - namely Meridian Lawyers acting on 
behalf of Pharmacy and Co, and the SDA - have been in discussions.  There has 
been some narrowing of the areas of dispute; however, it is likely that the parties 
will need to be heard on a number of specific issues.  What's anticipated is that the 
parties will, between now and 12 October - which is where I understand your 
Honour anticipates a hearing on this matter to be listed - is to come to a position 
where there is, if you like, an aide-memoire produced which deals with the 
minutiae or the specific details. 

PN10332  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That's fine.  I'm content to leave it on that basis.  I would 
encourage the parties to adopt a similar approach in relation to all of the 
outstanding objections to the expert evidence, and we can get a report - or 



Catanzariti VP can - at 3.25 or thereabouts on Monday the 12th.  That time may 
slip a bit, depending on what flows in relation to the retail employer lay evidence 
and the objections to that evidence.  Is there anything else in relation to that? 

PN10333  
MR SECK:  Can I just clarify, your Honour.  I think last week you said it was 
anticipated there would be a full hearing, but I think from what your Honour has 
said this morning, it simply going to be a report-back before the Vice President. 

PN10334  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The hearing is on Wednesday the 14th on the program. 

PN10335  
MR SECK:  Pardon me, your Honour.  I understand. 

PN10336  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The report-back is just to work out what the scope of the 
hearing, really, so everybody knows.  Okay? 

PN10337  
MR SECK:  Thank you, your Honour. 

PN10338  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The hearing on Wednesday the 14th was intended to be the 
objections to the expert evidence, because that was all we had at that stage.  We 
will deal with the objections to the retail lay evidence, the employer and the union 
lay evidence, as I've outlined.  But at this stage we just need to see what the 
dimensions of that is before we do too much more in relation to the scheduling of 
it.  If we can go to the revised schedules attached to the notice of listing and deal 
firstly with this issue about Professor Altman and Professor Markey.  What's the 
story with them? 

PN10339  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, it would be merely to swap their spots. 

PN10340  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Does that effect - how long was - I think Professor Altman was 
45 minutes for cross-examination; what about Professor Markey? 

PN10341  
MS BURNLEY:  I think Professor Altman was an hour - - - 

PN10342  
JUSTICE ROSS:  No, that might have been updated, yes. 

PN10343  
MS BURNLEY:  - - - an hour and 15 - at the time, an hour and 15. 

PN10344  
MR IZZO:  Your Honour, the latest estimates, Professor Altman is an hour and 
20, but Professor Markey is only looking like - is 45 minutes. 



PN10345  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Then that's - then it actually suits the program.  Is there any 
objection to Professor Altman swapping with Professor Markey so that Professor 
Altman would be at 3 pm on the 27th and Professor Markey would be at 9.30 on 
the 28th.  Is there any update – in relation to a number of witnesses the SDA were 
still considering whether cross-examination was required.  I had that down as 
Copious, Feast and Toth.  Do we know where you're up to with that? 

PN10346  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour, and I think there was also Deezy.  So it is 
likely that we will need – we are still working through the process to try and 
eliminate as best we can.  It does look highly unlikely that we will require Toth, 
which is AIG's number 50 at this time.  The only thing we are wanting to check is 
she's just attached – we are just trying to check that her statement is actually 
accurate as to what she's attached, if that makes sense, your Honour.  So that's the 
only issue that we have got with regard to her, so we don't think there's any 
relevance to calling her to cross-examine on that. So that would be the one that we 
can at this time say we don't require. 

PN10347  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, okay.  What about the other two? 

PN10348  
MS BURNLEY:  The other two we haven't quite reached a view of that at this 
time. 

PN10349  
JUSTICE ROSS:  When will you reach a view on it? 

PN10350  
MS BURNLEY:  So, your Honour, it looks like we will be able to inform 
everybody by the end of next week. 

PN10351  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay.  Can I go back to Professor Altman, is he available 
earlier in the day?  It's just otherwise our last witness will be at 10.30 and then we 
have got a gap until three.  Can we get him in at 11 and then complete his 
evidence by the luncheon adjournment? 

PN10352  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, there is a proposal to slightly rearrange some of 
these schedules, which was to start later on the Monday. 

PN10353  
JUSTICE ROSS:  But why would we do that? 

PN10354  
MS BURNLEY:  It does save some of the parties some expense for coming up the 
night before, your Honour, because these are the matters which are based in 
Sydney for the week.  So that would be one of the proposals. 



PN10355  
JUSTICE ROSS:  If that's the only reason - - - 

PN10356  
MS BURNLEY:  At this stage I am not sure whether Professor Altman is 
available any earlier than 3 o'clock on that day. 

PN10357  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right, if you can find out.  If you can find out if he can be 
put on at 11 we could move the first couple of witnesses to the afternoon on the 
26th, so Fantas and Lonergan could move to 2 and 2.30 and it will depend a bit 
then on whether you are going to call the other two witnesses.  So on that basis we 
could start at 10.30 with Dunne.  That means the parties can travel up in the 
morning. 

PN10358  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, can you just repeat who you were proposing on 
the revised timetable? 

PN10359  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That would be the two restaurant catering witnesses, Fantas and 
Lonergan, who are currently on at 9.30 and 9.50.  They could go to 2 pm and 2.30 
where there are gaps in the program at the moment, and we could start at 10.30 
with Marcus Dunne.  Mr Parkes, can you check whether Fantas and Lonergan can 
give their evidence?  They were going to give it by video in any event I think.  If 
they can do that at 2 and 2.30 on the Monday. 

PN10360  
MR PARKES:  Yes, your Honour, we have indicated to the SDA that Mr Fantas 
and Mr Lonergan would be available also on the Tuesday afternoon.  So if that 
helps with the scheduling it is possible to move them around to that time. 

PN10361  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think it would be more helpful if they can be moved to the 
Monday afternoon at 2 and 2.30.  It's just I want to avoid gaps of three or four 
hours in the program if I can.  So what I am proposing, Mr Parkes, is that Mr 
Fantas and Mr Lonergan, Fantas be heard at 2 o'clock on Monday the 26th, 
Lonergan at 2.30.  Then if we can move Altman from 3 pm to 11 am on Tuesday 
the 27th then that gives the parties a more useable block of time in the afternoon 
of the 27th prior to the other experts.  Then we would start at 10.30 on the 26th 
with Marcus Dunne.  So there's a slight shift in Dunne's timing from 10.20 to 
10.30, but I don't anticipate that will cause any problems.  Are there any other 
witnesses that we need to look at in terms of the draft program? 

PN10362  
MR IZZO:  Your Honour, not in terms of scheduling; I just wanted to flag in 
relation to Ms Baxter she's due to give evidence on 19 October towards the end of 
the retail hearing.  Your Honour had previously made a couple of enquiries about 
the number of people who received the survey, which Ms Baxter deposes about.  
Ms Baxter has been working on a supplementary statement.  We were planning on 
serving that on the relevant unions and seeking their consent to file with the 



Commission.  We hope to do that this week.  So I just wanted to flag that we are 
intending on seeking leave for a supplementary statement, but if that can be done 
by consent that's how we will do it. 

PN10363  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay.  In any event I will be asking her the questions so you 
may as well get her evidence in early I suppose. 

PN10364  
MR WHEELAHAN:  If I could just revisit – the week of the 14th through to 18 
December as I understand it that - - - 

PN10365  
JUSTICE ROSS:  The 14th to - - - 

PN10366  
MR WHEELAHAN:  The 18 December - - - 

PN10367  
JUSTICE ROSS:  We are back with the experts? 

PN10368  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Yes.  There are only three experts to be heard in that week, 
Charlesworth, McDonald and O'Brien, and if I could just ask your Honour to give 
consideration of having those witnesses not before 16 December. 

PN10369  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Not - - - 

PN10370  
MR WHEELAHAN:  Not before the 16th. 

PN10371  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think they were going to be called on the 15th, weren't they?  
Wasn't that the - - - 

PN10372  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour, it was the 15th. 

PN10373  
MR WHEELAHAN:  You need the 15th, do you? 

PN10374  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes. 

PN10375  
JUSTICE ROSS:  That's their availability. 

PN10376  
MS BURNLEY:  That's their availability. 

PN10377  



JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes.  That's all right, you will get the draft schedule and I think 
once you see it then there's usually half a dozen other objections, so you will have 
another opportunity and sometimes witness availability changes as well. 

PN10378  
MR WHEELAHAN:  That's fine. 

PN10379  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes, we will see how we go.  Anything else in relation to the 
scheduling of the retail evidence? 

PN10380  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour.  With the timetable that was issued regarding 
the week of 19 to 23 October - - - 

PN10381  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10382  
MS BURNLEY:  - - - the first witness is listed as Barry Baron and he has been 
provided with half an hour.  The SDA actually requested two hours, so there has 
been a reshuffle which is different to what the ARA proposed and what was 
originally there, so there's been something slotted in there.  So what we would 
suggest, your Honour, is that the two witnesses which have been slotted in which 
is the PGA witness of Toomey - - - 

PN10383  
JUSTICE ROSS:  How long do you think you need? 

PN10384  
MS BURNLEY:  Two hours. 

PN10385  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Yes. 

PN10386  
MS BURNLEY:  Two hours, so that would take him to 11.30. 

PN10387  
JUSTICE ROSS:  If we start at 9 we could finish at 11 and minimise the 
disruption that way. 

PN10388  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes.  I was suggesting though it might be more convenient for 
the Bench also to have the two PGA witnesses who are available both on the 20th 
to be listed on the 20th together, one after the other, so that we are not chopping 
and changing too much, and Emily Baxter - - - 

PN10389  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Which PGA witnesses? 

PN10390  



MS BURNLEY:  There is one that's Georgina Turner which is listed for 10 
o'clock, and also 11.30. 

PN10391  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All we have done is – I think the PGA had suggested that that 
was when they were available. 

PN10392  
MS BURNLEY:  She was available both the 19th and the 20th, your Honour.  So 
that also - - - 

PN10393  
MS WELLARD:  Your Honour, I think that may have been the case at one point, 
but I think a locum has now been arranged for Ms Toomey on the 19th and it is 
becoming difficult to shift the pharmacy witnesses around. 

PN10394  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right. 

PN10395  
MS BURNLEY:  Your Honour, we would request that Emily Baxter be moved to 
the Tuesday, your Honour, because it is a fairly intense day for the SDA in cross-
examination purposes, and that our other request was that all of our witnesses be 
heard on the 21st. 

PN10396  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Every day is going to be an intense day because you're cross-
examining witnesses all day and that's what your counsel are paid for.  So I don't 
think that's a reason to move them. 

PN10397  
MS BURNLEY:  But there needs to be at least some break so there can be some 
preparation time, which at the moment there isn't over any of those days, your 
Honour. 

PN10398  
JUSTICE ROSS:  What do you mean preparation time, you have had their 
statements for a long time now. 

PN10399  
MS BURNLEY:  No, not with our employee witnesses. 

PN10400  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Your employee witnesses? 

PN10401  
MS BURNLEY:  Yes, your Honour. 

PN10402  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Let's just stick with the employers for the moment.  How long 
is required for Baron? 



PN10403  
MS BURNLEY:  Two hours. 

PN10404  
JUSTICE ROSS:  So Toomey, I take it, can be moved to the 20th, is that right? 

PN10405  
MS WELLARD:  No, your Honour, she can't. 

PN10406  
JUSTICE ROSS:  She can't be moved to the 20th. 

PN10407  
MS WELLARD:  No, your Honour. 

PN10408  
JUSTICE ROSS:  If Baxter is moved to 12.10 on the Tuesday and then Flook is 
moved to 2 pm on the Tuesday, then that should work.  How long is Goddard 
required for cross-examination? 

PN10409  
MS WELLARD:  An hour and a half, your Honour. 

PN10410  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I doubt if any of them are going to take that long.  Is Toomey 
available generally on the 19th? 

PN10411  
MS WELLARD:  Your Honour, I would have to check to see if she could be 
moved either forward or later in the day.  I'm not sure if she's arranged an 
alternative just for the morning or if it's for the whole day. 

PN10412  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I think the easiest course would be to move Toomey to 9 am. 

PN10413  
MS WELLARD:  I think it's probably likely that at least the morning has been 
blocked out by her, your Honour. 

PN10414  
JUSTICE ROSS:  I would think so, yes.  We will move Toomey to 9 am and then 
leave Baron at 9.30, move Baxter and then you've got 11.30 Goddard.  Any 
objection to moving Baxter, Mr Izzo? 

PN10415  
MR IZZO:  No, your Honour. 

PN10416  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  Okay.  Then we would have Flook at 2 pm, and then 
start the employee witness evidence at 2.30.  That means we would have an 
additional - potentially, depending on how many employee witnesses' statements 
are filed - we would deal with them on the balance of the time available on 



Wednesday the 21st.  So it's likely that we would finish all of them by lunchtime 
on the 21st.  All right.  Anything further about the program? 

PN10417  
MS BURKE:  Just one final spanner, your Honour, I'm sorry.  There are, as I 
understand it, just a few outstanding issues with regard to hospitality lay 
witnesses.  Perhaps Ms Wellard can confirm, I think there's one witness who was 
unavailable in the September hearings.  I understand she is still to be called.  If 
that is so then we would be grateful if her evidence could be dealt with on 
Tuesday the 27th, perhaps before or after Professor Altman. 

PN10418  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Depending on where Professor Altman ends up. 

PN10419  
MS BURKE:  Yes, or Wednesday or Thursday, of course.  Those are days when 
we will be in Sydney.  Of course we can make arrangements that are convenient. 

PN10420  
JUSTICE ROSS:  All right.  I will put out a revised schedule.  If the SDA can 
advise me later today about Professor Altman's availability to be moved from 3 
pm to 11 am on the 27th, then we will put out a revised schedule.  If you can have 
a discussion with Ms Wellard and sort out - we will slot the witness in.  Is her 
evidence going to take long? 

PN10421  
MS BURKE:  I don't imagine so, your Honour. 

PN10422  
JUSTICE ROSS:  We will slot them in wherever the parties agree really.  Okay. 

PN10423  
MS BURKE:  And there are three hospitality witnesses who were asked to 
produce documents, either a request from your Honour or from Mr Dowling.  Mr 
Lovell has produced those documents and it's in our camp to review those 
documents and determine whether or not we wish to recall Mr Lovell.  I 
understand those documents, they were produced in response to a request from 
your Honour, so that matter is still outstanding. 

PN10424  
As far as I understand it, Mr Madden and Mr Ovenden were also requested to 
produce documents and none have yet been produced.  If they are to be produced 
and those witnesses are to be recalled, then some time in that last week would also 
be convenient. 

PN10425  
JUSTICE ROSS:  Okay. 

PN10426  
MS BURKE:  Thank you. 

PN10427  



JUSTICE ROSS:  Ms Wellard, if you can ensure that all the requests are met by 
Wednesday of next week, and once the material has been provided then United 
Voice will be in a position to let you know whether any of the witnesses are 
recalled or required for further evidence.  I will leave it to each of you to work out 
when they might be dealt with, but it might be convenient to deal with them on 
the afternoon of Tuesday the 27th and deal with all of them then, particularly if 
we can move Professor Altman to the morning of 11, then we should have the 
afternoon clear, and bearing in mind it will only involve really you and the 
hospitality employers, AHA, et cetera, then that's probably the most convenient 
time to do it.  All right.  Let's see when the witnesses are available and all those 
sorts of complications.  Okay.  Anything further? 

PN10428  
All right.  Once I have heard from you about those availability issues, I will send 
out a revised program and a short note with the directions that have been issued in 
the running of today's mention.  Nothing further.  I think I will see you back at - 
we will have a mention at 9 am on Monday 12 October to deal with a proposed 
program in relation to the expert evidence. 

PN10429  
Mr Izzo, if you can send my associate that cross-examination estimate as soon as 
can, preferably this morning.  We will also post it on the intranet site or the site 
for this case so you will be able to access it, and I will set out a draft program and 
we can discuss it at that mention. 

PN10430  
Nothing further?  All right.  Sydney?  No.  All right.  Thank you very much.  I 
will adjourn. 

ADJOURNED UNTIL MONDAY, 12 OCTOBER 2015  [9.47 AM] 


